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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited

Report on the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of MSEB Solar
Agro Power Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2024,
the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the period then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 March 2024, its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and
its cash flows for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SAs") specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
SAs are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india {“ICAl") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and Ruies thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as perl SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted company.




Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Board Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or efror.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of Standalone ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
~ error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs




will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

. override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
 exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(1 1) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
A" a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143 (5) of the Act, on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, in the Annexure “B” on the
directions issued by The Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3 Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act based
on our audit, we report to the extent applicable, that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
accompanying financial statements;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting,

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at 31 March 2024;




ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative
contracts, for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March

2024,

ii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the period ended 31
March 2024,

iv. (@) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person{s) or
entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities (the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

{c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the management representations under sub-clauses
(a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not deciared or paid any dividend during the period ended 31
March 2024.

~ vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the period for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during
the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with.

(h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act: in our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not paid managerial remuneration to its directors during
the current period.

For Vinay Sanjay and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: F-112195W

CA Vinay Bhat
Parther
Membership No: 037274

Mumbai, November 11, 2024 UDIN: 24037274BKILDYA4245




Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report — 31 March 2024

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors' Report to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2024,
we report the following:

{B a. A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of its Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) The company does not have any intangible assets during the year.

b. We are informed that fixed assets have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable interval and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable

having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.

¢. The company does not own any immovable property and hence the clause is not
applicable.

d. The company has not revalued any assets of property plant and equipment during
the year.

e. No proceedings have been initiated against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thereunder.

(in) (a) The Company does not have any inventory, hence physical verification of inventory
and reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been
sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of time of the period. Accordingly,

reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) The Company has made investments in 21 wholly owned subsidiaries SPV companies and
has granted advances in nature of unsecured loans to these Companies during the year under
audit. '

a. Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has granted advances to its wholly owned subsidiary companies
as follows :

(Amount in Rs )
Particulars Loans Advance in the
nature of loan
Aggregate amount granted and outstanding as at Balance Sheet date / duri
Subsidiary - 5,903,678
Others - -

b. The Company has made investments in subsidiaries and provided interest-free advances in
the nature of loans to Subsidiaries as above .

.....
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c. We are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the Investment made, and interest
free advances without specifying the schedule of repayment are, prima facie, appears not
to be prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

d. In the case of advances given to subsidiary companies , the repayment of principal and
payment of interest has not been stipulated and therefore we are unable to comment as to
whether repayments or receipts have been regular or not.

e. Inthe case of advances given to subsidiary companies , the repayment of principal has not

been stipulated and therefore we are unable to comment as to whether there is any overdue
amount for more than ninety days.

f. The Company has granted loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment. Details of which are as under: -

(AmountinRs )

Particulars Toftal Promoters Related Parties Others

Aggregate amount of loans/
advances in nature of loans
(including interest o/s)

- Repayable on demand (A) Nil Nl Nil Nil
- Agreement does not specify any | 5,93,678 Nil 5,93,678 NI
terms or period of repayment (B)

NilTotal {(A+B) 5,93,678 Nil 5,93,678 Nil
Percentage of advances in nature of - - 100% Nil

loans to the total loans.

{iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under sections 185 of the Act. According to the information and
explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the loans
given, guarantees given, securities provided or investments made are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Qrder is not applicable
to the Company.

{v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been
considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/business




activity. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(viiy (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise,
Sales tax and Value added tax during the period since effective 1 July 2017,
these statutory dues have been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods
and Services Tax, Income-Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have
been reguiarly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.
Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at
the period-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above that have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of
accounts.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have loans or
borrowings from any lender during the period. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)a) to 3 (ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
pubfic offer (inciuding debt instruments), during the period. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3{x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the period. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x}(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company. '

{xi}) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the
representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no
whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the period.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to
it. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xili)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. Further,

~the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of




{xvii)
{xviii)

(xix)

{xx)

{xxi)

Mumbai, November 11, 2024 UDIN: 24037274BKILDY4245

the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, reporting under clause 3(xiil) of the Order is not
applicabie to the Company.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal
audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them and
accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank

~of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash loss during the current period. This being
the first year of the Company and hence reporting for previous year notrequired

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the period. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period

of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not fuffill
the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Vinay Sanjay and Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: F-112195W

W/

CA Vinay Bhat
Partner
M.No. -037274




Annexure “B”- Report on Directions / Sub-Directions issued by Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Act

In terms of Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under

sub-section (
and records of the Company, as we consi

5) of section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks of the books
dered appropriate and according to the

information and explanation given to us, we give a statement on the matters specified
in the said Directions.

i. Directions under sub-section (5) of section 143 of the Act

Directions

Auditor Comments

Sr. No.
1,

Whether the company has system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through
iT systems? If yes, the implications of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system on
the integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Not Applicable, since all the
accounting transactions are
processed manually and
later accounting entries are
passed in accounting
software.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing
loan or cases of waiveriwrite off of
debts/loansfinterest etc. made by a lender of the
company due to company’s inability to repay the
loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly accounted for?
(In case, lender is a Government company, then
this direction is also applicable for statutory
auditor of lender Company).

According to information and
explanations given to us,
there are no such cases of
restructuring of Loans or
cases of waiver/write off of
debts/ loans/interest by the
lenders of the company.

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/
receivable for the specific schemes from Central/
State Government or its agencies were properly
accounted for/utilized as per its terms and
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

According to information and
explanations given to us, no
funds (grants/subsidy etc.)
are received/receivable for
the specific schemes from
Central/ State Government or
its agencies.

ii. Sector specific Sub directions

Sr. No. | Directions Auditors Comments
1. Whether the Company has commenced the | Yes
activities for which it was formed?
2. Whether the Company has an effective | Yes . All the revenues

system for recovery of Revenue as per
contractual terms and the Revenue is
properly accounted for in the books of
accounts in compliance with the applicable
Accounting Standards?

accrued to the Company
during the year is properly
accounted in the books of
accounts




3. Where Land Acquisition is involved in setting |, This clause is not
up new projects, report whether settlement | applicable to the
of dues done expeditiously and in a | Company for the year
transparent manner in all cases? The cases
of deviation may please be detailed.

4. How much tariff roll back subsidies have | This  clause is not
been allowed and booked in the Accounts | applicabie to the
during the year? Whether the same is being Company for the year
reimbursed regularly by the State
Government shortfall? If any, may be
commented.

5. Report on the efficacy of the system of | This clause is not
Billing and Collection of revenue in the applicable to the
Company further whether tamper proof Company for the year
meters have been installed for all
consumers? If not them, examine how
accuracy of Billing is ensured.

6. Negative Balances under “Advances to This clause is not
Contract” may be analyzed and commented applicable to the
on, with reasons and impact on Financial | Company for the year
Statements. :

7. Whether there is appropriate classification of | This  clause is  not
inventory with value such as Scrap, obsolete applicable to the
material etc.? Company for the year

8. Whether the assets have been constructed | This  clause is  not
and completed on behalf of other agencies applicable to the
and handed over to them has been properly | Company for the year
accounted for in the Books of Accounts.

9. Whether funds receivedireceivable for | This clause is not
specific schemes from  central/State applicable to the
agencies were properly  accounted Company for the year
for/utilized? List the cases of deviations.

10. Whether the Company regularly monitors | This ~ clause is not
timely receipt of subsidy from Government, | applicable to the
and it is properly recording them in its | Company for the year
books?

11. Whether interest earned on parking of funds | All interest earned from
received for specific projects from | Deposits has been
Government was properly accounted for? properly accounted

12. Whether ProfitlLoss mentioned in Audit | Yes
Report is as per Profit & Loss Statements of '
the Company?

13. Examine whether the provisions of the | This clause is not

Companies Act were followed w.rt
reporting disclosure of CSR activities.

applicable to the
Company for the year




Annexure C to the Independent Auditors’ Report - 31 March 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
{“the Act”)

{Referred to in paragraph (2)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financia! statements of MSEB

Solar Agro Power Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“the Guidance Note"). '

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
respect to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established
and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in ail material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with respect to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with respect to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with respect to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference
to financial statements.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statemenis to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controf with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Vinay Sanjay and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: F-112195W

RN

CA Vinay Bhat
Partner
M.No. -037274

UDIN: 24037274BKILDY4245

Mumbai, Novehber 11, 2024
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PART -I BALANCE SHEET
MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LIMITED
(CIN:-U43222MF20235GC403920)
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
(Amount in Thousand)
Particulars Note As at
No. |31st March 2024

ASSETS
(1) {Non Cuarrent Assets

a_|Property, Plant & Equipment 6 238
b _|Capital Wotk in Progress _ -
[
d

Intanpible Assets -
Financial Assets -
(@) Investments ‘ ' 7 2,100
(ii) Loans -
(iii) Others -
e _|Deferred Tax Assets (Net) ' . -
f |Othet Non Current Assets 8 604

(2) |Current Assets
a |Inventories -
b . [Financial Assets
(1} Investments -
(ii) Trade Receivables 9 57
_|{ii) Cash & Cash Equivalents . .. . _ 10 2,28,643
(iv) Bank Balances Others 11 2,72,000
(v) Loans : -
{vi) Others ‘ 12 8,645
¢ _|Current Tax Assets (Net) 13 | 30,064

7

d [Other Current assets K -

Total Assets : 5,42,351

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

- |[EQUITY . _
2_|Equity Share capital 14 2,10,000
b |Othet Equity ' : 15 27,331
LIABILITIES

(1) |Non Current Liabilities
a [Financial laibilities

(i) Borrowings g -
(if) Trade Payables .




Particulats Note As at
No. |31st March 2024

(iif) Other financial Liabilities -
Provisions - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 16 28
d |Other Non Current Liabilities

2]

(2) [Current Liabilities

a {Financial laibilities
(i) Borrowings -
(ii) Trade Payables -
(iti) Orther financial Lisbilities 17 3,04,991
Other Current Liabiltes
¢ . {Provisions

Total Liabilities and Equity 5,42,351
Material Accounting Policies 1-5
Notes to accounts 6-39

See accompanying notes to the financial statement
As per our report of even date

For M/S Vinzy Sanjay-and Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants;_ MSEB Solar Agto Power Ltd.
Firm Registration Number: 112195W

r

. 4
N (e S
CA.Vinay R. Btat i Kalekar  Balfsaheb Thite  Abha Shukla

Partnet Director Director Managing Director

Membership Nurcber : F-37274 (DIN: 10432049) (DIN: 08923676) (DIN : 09054999)

Place : Mumbai , -

Date :11/11/2024 _ ;)\/_/'\

UDIN : 24037274BKILDY4245 @ /
- upali Gole

CFO
) . Mem. No. 150823




PART I1 -STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LIMITED

(CIN:-U43222MH2023SGC403920)

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period from 31st May, 2023 to 31st March 202«

(Amount in Thousand)
Particulats Note For the period
31st May 2023 to
31st March 2024
() |Revenue from operations -
(i) {Other Income 18 76,669
I |Total Income (i)+(ii) ' . 76,669
Expenses S :
() |Employee Benefits Expenses 19 6,266
(i) |Depreciation and amortization expense 20 61
(i) |Others expenses 21 33,738
II [Total Expenses ((i) to (iii)) 40,065
III |Profit /(Loss) before exceptional itéms and tax (II-I) 36,604
IV |Exceptional Items
V_|Profit /(Loss) before tax (III - IV) ' 36,604
VI |Tax Expenses:
(1) Current Tax 9,245
(2) Deferred Tax 28
vi1 |Profit / (Loss)for the period from ‘c-o'ntlinuing-opetations o ‘
{V-vI) ' 27,331
VIII , . .
Profit /(Loss) from discontinued operations before tax _ -
IX |Tax Expenses of discontinued operations -
X Profit /(Loss) from discontinued operations (After tax) '
(VIII-IX) . -
X1 [Profit /(Loss) for the period ' 27,331
XII [Other Comprehensive Income
(&) (@) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{11} Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss -
Subtotal (A)
) (1) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss .
Subtotal (B) -
XIII|Other Comprehensive Income(A+B)




Particulars Note For the period
31st May 2023 to
31st March 2024
XIv 27,351
Total Comptehensive Income for the period (X1 + XIII)
b.aimngs per equity share (for continuing and
XVID 4iscontinued operations)
Basic (Rs.) 3.17
Diluted (Rs.) 3.17
Material Accounting Policies 1-5
Notes to accounts 6-39

See accompanying notes to the financial statement

As pet our report of even date

For M/S Vinay Sanjay and Associates  For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.
Firm Registration Number: 112195W

s
11 Kalekar

CA. Vinay R. Bhat Balasdheb Thite  Abha Shukla
Partner Director Directr Managing Director
Membership Number : F-37274 (DIN: 10432049) (DIN: 08923676) (DIN : 09054999)
Place : Mumbai

Date : 11/11/2024 g _ hﬁ\p'b
UDIN : 24037274BKILDY4245 @ U\J"‘“i )
upal Gole '
CFO pany Secretaty
Mem. No. 150823  Mem. No. A22980




MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LIMITED
(CIN:-U43222MH?20235GC403920) '
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the Period from 31st May 2023 to 31st March 2024

{Amount in Thousand)
PARTICULARS For the period 31st May 2023
to 31st March 2024
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 36,604
Adjustments for: _ .
Depreciation 61
Interest income (9,718)
Taxes Paid -9,245
Subtotal (18,901)
Operating profit befote working capital changes 17,703

Adjustments for:
Increase/(Decrease) in Reserves

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilites
Increase/(Dectease) in Long Term Provisions

Increase/(Dectease) in Other Current Liabilities -
Increase/{Decrease) in Other Current Financial Liabilities 3,04,991
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions -
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Tax Liabilities : -

(Increase)/Dectease in Other Non Current Assets (604)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balances and Term Deposit (2,72,000)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Cutrent assets (8,645)
(Inctease)/Decrease in Trade Receivables : 67| 23,686
Cash generated from opetations 41,389
Less: Taxes paid(net of refunds) 30,064
Cash flow before extraotdinary item 11,325
Add/ Less: Extra-ordinary items

Net cash from operating activities (A) ‘ 11,325

B. Cash flows from investing activities :
Purchase of fixed assets and addition to Capital Work in Progress (300

Sale of Assets ' -
Purchase of Non Current Investments (2,100)
Interest received (Net of TDS) 9,718
7,318

Net cash used for investing activities (b)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Ptoceeds from issuance of Share Application Money Pending
allotment

Proceeds from issuance of Shares o 2,10,000




PARTICULARS For the period 31st May 2023
to 31st March 2024

Interest paid -
Increase in Long Term botrowings on account of Interest
Interest charged to P & L. -
Decrease in Other Current Liabilities on account of interest -
Net cash from financing activities ( C) 2,10,000
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B + C) 2,28,643
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,28,643

Foot Note:
1) Cash flow is prepared under Indirect Method as prescribed in INID AS 7-Cash Flow Statements

2) Cash & Cash Equivalents included in the Financial Statements comprise the following.

Cash & Cash Equivalents o . As on 31.03.24
Balance in Cutrent accounts 28,643
Cash .
Cheques on hand

Batlance in Fixed Deposits {(maturity less than 3 months) 2,00,000
Total 2,28,643

See accompanying notes to the financial statement
As per our report of even date

For M/S Vinay Sanjay and Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.

""" Firm Registration Number: 112195W
‘., - r
ol
;;&...-&\ CA. Vinay R. Bhat il Kalekar Balas@heb Thite = Abha Shukla
Ll Partoer Director, . Director Managing Director
Membership Number : F-37274 (DIN: 10432049) (DIN: 08923676) (DIN :09054999)

Place : Mumbai .
Date : 11/11/2024 ;}///‘ M M’J_b
UDIN : 24037274BKILD Y4245 @ :
Rupali Gole Subodh -
CFO Cestipany Secretary
Mem. No. 1506823 Mem. No. A22980




MSEB SOLAR AGRO POWER LIMITED
AOHZH-ChwuwwgmmowumOOAﬁuwNoV

Statement of changes in equity
PART -I BALANCE SHEET
Standalone Statement of changes in Equity for the Period from 31s¢ May 2023 to 31st March 2024

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Amount in
Thousand

As at 1st Apdl 2022 -
Issue of share capital (As per Note 14 ) -
As at 31st March 2023 -
Issue of share capital {As per Note 14 ) : 2,10,000
As at 31st March 2024 2,10,000

B: Otber Equity .
Essue of share capital (As per Note 14 )

Share application Equity component of Reserves and Surplus
money pending compound financial | Capital reserves Securities Other reserves | Retained
allotment instruments . premium (Specify nature) Earnings

Balance as on 1st April 2023 : ) - - - -
Profit for the Pedod ) - 5 - - - - 27,331
Other Comprehensive Expenditure for the Period - - - - - -
Dividends - - - - - -
Transfer to retained earntogs : - - - - -
Share Application Money received during the Period - - - - -
Shares issued during the Period - - - - -
Balance as on 31st March 2024 . - - - - - 27,331
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For M/S Vinay Sanjay and Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants MSEB Solar Agro Power Ltd.

Firm Registration Number: 112195W

CA. Vinay R. Bhat Abha Shukla
Partner ’ Director Managing Director
Membership Number : F-37274 (DIN: 10432049) (DIN: 08923676) (DIN :09054999) -
Place : Mumbai . %
Date - 11/11/2024 - m v M-
Qﬂ“ﬂ: Gole Subodh
CFO any wnoaﬁa,

Mem. No. 150823 em. No. A22980




Note 1: Corporate information:

The Government of Maharashtta vide its General Resolution (GR) No. Saurapra-
2023 /prakea.95/urja-7 dated 8" May, 2023 had launched the Mukyamantri Saur Krushi Vahini
Yojana 2.0 (MSKVY) with the objective of providing reliable electricity supply to farmers in
Maharashtra during the day time. The Scheme is in line with the “Solar Power Mission 20257,
which can translate into adding the additional solar power capacity of 7,000 MW by December,
2025.

In pursuance of Clause 2.3 of ‘Implementation System and Contents’ of the said GR, the
Government of Maharashtra has specifically permitted incorporation of Special Purpose
Vehicles (SPVs)for the implementation of the MSKVY from time to time. Further, as per Clause
2.2 and 2.3 of the said GR, the Government has permitted Tariff Based Bidding to be carried
out through the SPV Company and then a Purchase Contract to be executed by the SPV with
the Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited (MSEDCL).

The MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited has been incorporated for various purposes contemplated
for the implementation of the MSKVY.

Note 2: Basis of preparation:

MSEB Solar Agro Power Limited is fully owned subsidiary of MSEB Holding Company Limited.
Since holding company’s financial statements have been prepared to comply, in all material
aspects, in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein after referred to as 'IND
AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act),[the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the other relevant provisions of the Act], the same
compliance has been applied to the subsidiaries and accordingly the accounts of MSEB Solar
Agro Power Lid has been prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (herein after referred to as 'INID AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act),[the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the other
relevant provisions of the Act.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions. Actual results could vary from these estimates. The accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year ot in
the year of the revision and future years, if the revision affects both current and future years
(Refer Note No. 4 on significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumption).

The financial statements have been prepared on a histotical cost basis except for certain financial
assets and liabiliies measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments.) at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in “Thousand’ which is the Company’s
functional currency.

Note 3: Cutrent and Non-Cutrent classification:

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current
clagsification.




An asset is current when it is:
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
¢ Held primarily for the putpose of trading.
¢ Expected to be realised within twelve months after reporting period.
Or
o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
¢ Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,
® Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting petiod,
Or '
e There is no unconditonal right to defer the settlement of the lLability for at twelve
months after the reporting period.

Defetred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current on net basis.

All other labilities are classified as non-current.

Note 4: Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and - estimnates could result in outcomes that require a
matetial adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing citcumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
matket changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Information about significant areas of estimates and judgments in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements are as
below:

* Estimates of useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets; ‘

* Fair value measurements of financial instruments
* Impairment of non-financial assets;
* Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligation, key actuarial assumptions;

* Provisions and Contingencies;




* Evaluation of recoverability of deferred tax assets;

* Revenue recognition

Note 5 : Material accounting policies:

1. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE):

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognises such patts as separates
component of assets with specific useful lives and provides depreciation over their useful
life. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the items can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repait and maintenance costs are recognised in Statement of profit and loss, when
expenses are incurred.

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under
installation/under development as at the balance sheet date.

Capital Expenditure on tangible assets for research and development is classified under
property, plant and equipment and is depreciated on the same basis as other property,
plant and equipment.

Gains and losses arising from retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Assets are depreciated to the residual values on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives. The assets residual values and useful lives ate reviewed at each financial year
end or whenever there are indicators for review, are adjusted prospectively.

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to Investment property, the
property is reclassified as Investment Property at its carrying amount on the date of
classification.

Leased Assets

Leasehold lands are amortised over the period of lease. Buildings constructed on
leaschold land are depreciated based on the useful life specified in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013, where the lease period of land is beyond the life of the building.

In other case, buildings constructed on leasehold lands are amortised over the primar

lease of the lands. Free hold land is not depteciated.




Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of Assets ' Years

Leasehold Land 01 to 90
Buildings 01 to 60
Plant &Equipment 01to15
Furniture & Fixtures - 01 to 10
Vehicles 01 to 08
Computets 01 to 03

Assets individually costing Rupees five thousand or less are fully depreciated over a
petiod of twelve months from the date available for use.

Intangible assets:

Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the asset, it is
probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company
and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

At initial recognition, the separately acquired intangible assets are recognised at cost. The
cost of intangible assets that ate acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at
the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation is recognised in Statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset (except
goodwill) is reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful
life ot the expected pattetn of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset is accounted by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

a) Goodwill — Goodwill is initially recognised at cost and is subsequently measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

b) Software — Softwate is capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective
license for use and is amottised over the period of license, generally not exceeding
three years.

¢) Licences — Acquired licenses are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, licenses are
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment loss, if
any. Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis
over the unexpired period of the license and is disclosed under ‘depreciation and
amortisation’. The amortisation period relating to licenses acquired in a business
combination is determined primarily by reference to the unexpired license period.

d) Other acquired intangible assets — Other intangible assets are initially recognised at
cost. Other intangible assets acquired in business combinations are amortised over
the estimated useful lives from the date they ate available for use.




Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, and intangible

assets not yet put to use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impaitment. Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances include, though are not
limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse
changes in the economic environment.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment
loss recognised in the previous periods. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, if any, the Company determines the
recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is determined at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount trate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an apptopriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share process for publicly  traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairments losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, ate
recognised in profit and loss section of the statement of profit and loss, except for
properties previously re-valued with the revaluation taken to Other Compsehensive
Income (the ‘OCT’). For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the
amount of any previous tevaluation.

Pre-operative and preliminasy expenses:

Expenditure which are incurred to provide future economic benefits to an

enterprise, but no intangible assets ot other assets are acquired or created that can be
recognised, ate recognised as expenses when they are incurred.

Accordingly, Administration and other general overhead expenses such as consultancy
fees, formation expenses are expensed off in the profit and loss account in the year in
which these are incurred and not carried forward to be amozrtised over a period.

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand which are short term,

highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value. Balance in Deposit accounfs.




with maturity less than 3 months have also been classified under Cash and Cash
equivalents and balance of deposits more than three months and less than 12 months
have been classified under “Other Cash and Cash Equivalents” . Outstanding bank
overdrafts are shown within the borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of
financial position and which are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management. .

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received/receivable, excluding discounts, rebates, and
GST and other taxes as 'app]ica'ble for the time being in force. The Company assesses its
revenue arrangements against specific critetia ie. whether it has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or rendeting of setvices, in
order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent.

a. Interest income —.

For all the financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing
financial assets, classified as financial assets as fair value through profit or loss,
interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying
‘amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in “finance income’ in the
income statement.

b. Dividend income ~
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is
established. . '

¢. Lease Income —
Lease agreements where the risks and tewards incidental to the ownership of an asset
substantially vest with the lessor ate recognised as operating lease. Lease rentals are
recognised on straight line basis as per the terms of the agreements in the statement
of profit-and loss. -

Accounting/ classification of expenditure and income
Prior Period Items includes items of income or expenses which arise in the current
period as a result of error or omission in the preparation of financial statements of one

or more prior years. These are separately accounted for either by —

a) Restating the comparative amounts for the prior petiod(s) in which the etrot
occutred, or




(b) When the error occurred before the eatliest prior period(s) presented, restating the
opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for that period, so that the financial
statements are presented as if the etror had never occurred.

Only where it is imptacticable to determine the cumulative effect of an error on prior
periods, then such effect is cotrected prospectively from the earliest date practicable.

Employee benefits:

The Company’s post employment benefits include defined benefit plan and defined
contribution plans. The Company also provides other benefits in the form of deferred
compensation and compensated absences.

Under the defined benefit retirement plan, the Company provides retirement obligation
in the form of Gratuity. Under the plan, a lump sum payment is made to eligible
employees at retirement or termination of employment based on respective employee
salary and years of experience with the Company.

For defined benefit retirement plans, the difference between the fair value of the plan
assets and the present value of the plan liabilities is recognised as an asset or liability in
the statement of financial position. Scheme Liabilities are determined by actuarial
valuation, performed by an independent actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the
projected unit credit method. Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee
benefit fund or qualifying insurance policies.

All the expenses excluding re-measurements of the net defined benefits liability (asset), in
respect of defined benefit plans are recognised in the profit and loss as incurred. Re-
fmeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)), ate
recognised immediately in the statement of financial position with a corresponding debit
ot credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent
periods.

Compensated Absence

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial
valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using
projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/ availed as a
result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Gains
and losses through re-measutements of the net defined benefit lability/(asset) are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

The amount charged to the income statement in respect of these plans is included withj

operating costs.
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The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in Statement
of profit and loss as they fall due. The Company has no further obligations under these
plans beyond its periodic contributions.

Borrowing costs:

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction’ or production of an asset that necessatily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are. expensed in the petiod in which
they occur.

Leases:

‘The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” effective from 1st April, 2019, using the
modified retrospective method. The Company has applied the standard to its leases with
the cumulative impact recognised on the date of initial appliéation (1st April, 2019).
Accordingly, previous petiod information has not been restated. The Company’s lease
asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land and Buildings and Plant & Machinery.
The Company assesses whether a contract is ot contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess
whether a contract conveys the tight to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
petiod of the lease and (jii} the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. At
the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset
(“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and
leases of low value assets. For these short-term and leases of low value assets, the

Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
ot prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease of, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease
liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. A
lease liability is re-measured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in
the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments. The re-
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measurement normally also adjusts the leased assets. Lease liability and ROU asset are
separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments are classified as financing
Cash Flows.

Eatnings per share:

The Company’s eatnings per share (EPS) are determined based on the net profit
attributable to the shareholders’ of the Company. Basic earnings per share is computed
using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of common
and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding during the year including share
options (using the treasury stock method for options), except where the result would be
anti- dilutive,

Taxes on Income:

a. Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where applicable.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability/Asset is provided on temporary differences at the reporting

date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for

financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary difference, except —

. When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or of an asset ot lability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit/ (tax loss). '

. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will be not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

¢ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not




business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit/ (tax loss).

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
defetred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferted tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in cortelation to the undetlying
transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Defetred tax assets and deferred tax liabilites are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current incomes tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments:

a. General — Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as 2 result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and 2
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is récognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the incorne
statement net of any reimbursements.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

b. Contingencies — Contingencies liabilities are recognised at their fair value only, if
they were assumed as part of a business combination. Contingent assets are not
recognised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the
related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.
Information on contingent liabilities is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic




benefits is remote. The same applies to contingent assets where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

14. Fair value measurement;

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and certain
investments, at fair value at each balance sheet date,
Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:
¢ In the principal market for the asset or hiability
Or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or lability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

L]
All assets and liabilities for which fait value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 2 whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. ' S '

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the balance sheet on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

re- assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair- I

I
v =-,\.\31\‘

value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. X
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For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability
and the level of the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financial Instruments:

(i Financial assets:

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are
recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are
initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair
value through profit or loss, ate added/deducted to the fait value on initial recognition.
Transaction costs related to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities, that
are fair valued through profit or loss, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
Account.

Subsequent measurement
For purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified into two broad
categories:

e Financial assets at fair value

¢ Financial assets at amortised cost

Wherte assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in
the statement of profit and loss (i.e. fair value through profit & loss), or recognised in
other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comptehensive income).

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost
(net of any write down for impaitment) unless the asset is designated at fair value
through profit or loss undet the fair value option.

Business model test: The objective of the Company’s business model is to hold the
financial asset to .collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the instrument
prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes).

Cash flow charactetistic test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income unless the asset is designed at fair value through profit or loss

under the fair value option.

e Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial

assets.




* Cash flow characteristic test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Even if an instrument meets the two requirements to be measured at amortised cost ot
fair value through other comprehensive income, a financial asset is measured at fair value
through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an ‘accounting mismatch’) that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and
losses on them on different bases.

All other financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All equity investment are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value changes
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for those equity investments for
which the entity has elected to present value changes in ‘other comprehensive income’.

If an equity investment is not held for trading, an irrevocable election is made at initial
recognition to measure it at fair value through other comprehensive income with only
dividend income recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company’s
statement of financial position) when:
e ‘The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
¢ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either:
a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or
b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement. In case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, the
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximu
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amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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Investment in associates, joint venture and subsidiaries

The Company has accounted for its investment in subsidiaries and associates, joint
venture at cost net of accumulated impairment loss, if any in the financial statements.

On disposal of the Investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the
following: '
s Financial assets measuted at amortised cost;

o Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

e the 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from
those default events on the financial insttument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date); or

e full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all
possible default evénts over the life of the financial instrument).

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on:
e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivable; and

o Alllease receivables.

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

The Company uses a provision matrix to detetmine impairment loss allowance on the
portfolio of trade receivables. The provision mateix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the history observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit tisk has not increased significantly, 12- months ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument imaproves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,

then Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-months '
ECL.
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For assessing increase credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instrtuments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of
facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be
identified on a timely basis.

(1) Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. For trade and other payable, matuting within one year from the balance sheet
date, the catrying amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these
instruments.

De-trecognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
ot cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Offsetting of financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in
the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash flow statement :

Cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the indirect method prescribed in
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on ‘Statement of Cash Flow’. For the purpose of
the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent consist of cash, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.

New and amended standards:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time. As on 31 March 2024, no new standards or amendments are issued or
notified.




Standalone Notes to Accounts:

Note 6
STANDALONE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
, (Amt in Thousand)
Particulars Computers As at 31
March 2024
Period ended 31st March 2024
Gross Cartying Amount
Opening Gross Catrying Amount -
Additons 300 300
Adjustments - -
Disposal / Transfers - -
Closing Gross Cartying Amount 300 300
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Opening Accumulated Depreciation : , -
Depreciation Charge during the Petiod ' 61 61
Adjustments - -
Disposal/Transfers - -
Closing Accumulated Deptreciation and Impairment 61 61
Net Cartying Amount : : o 238 238
Note 7 : Non-Current Investments
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31
Match 2024

Trade Investments .

Investments in Equity Instruments

-Unquoted

-Subsidiary Companies

1. MSKVY First Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

2. MSKVY Second Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

3. MSKVY Third Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

4. MSKVY Fourth Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

5. MSKVY Fifth Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

6. MSKVY Sixth Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

7. MSKVY Saptam Saur SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

8. MSKVY Eighth Solar SPV Ltd(10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)

9. MSKVY Ninth Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)
10.MSKVY Tenth Solar SPV Ltd(10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)
11.MSKVY Eleventh Solar SPV Ltd(10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)
12. MSKVY Twelfth Solar SPV Ltd(10,000 Shates of Rs.10/- each.)
13. MSKVY Thirteenth Solar SPV Ltd(10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)
14. MSKVY Chaturdash Saur SPV Ltd(10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)
15. MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Ltd(10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)
16.MSKVY Sixteenth Solar SPV Ltd(10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.)




17 MSKVY Seventeenth Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.) 100.00
18.MSKVY Eighteenth Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.) 100.00
19 MSKVY Nineteenth Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.) 100.00
20. MSKVY Twentieth Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.) 100.00
21. MSKVY Twenty First Solar SPV Ltd (10,000 Shares of Rs.10/- each.) 100.00
Sub Total (a) 2,100.00
Particulars Carrying Value as on Fair Value as on
31st March 24 3lst March 2024
Aggregate amount of Quoted _
Investments NIILL NIL
Aggregate amount of unquoted 2,100.00 2.100.00
Investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in
value of investments NIL NIL
Note 8 : Other Non-Current Assets
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31" March
2024
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Considered Good -
Loans and advances to related parties
Unsecured, Considered Good
In Subsidiaries MSK VY First to Twenty First Solar 593.68
Other loans and advances
Other Deposits 10.00
Total 603.68
Note 9 : Trade Receivables:-
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2024
Less 6 More
Than 6 | Months | 1-2 2-3 | than3
Months | -1 Year | Year | Years | Years | Total
i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
Unsecured Considered Good 56.99 - - - - 56.99
il) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
Unsecured Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
iii) Disputed Trade Receivables -
Unsecured Considered Good - - - - - -
iv} Disputed Trade Receivables -
Unsecuted Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
Total :
=== 56.99 - - - -| 56.99




Note 10 : Cash & Cash Equivalents

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31" March
2024
Cash and Cash Equivalent
a. Balances with banks
In Current Accounts 28,642.55
In Deposit Accounts with otiginal maturity less than 3 months 2,00,000.00
b. Cash on Hand -
c. Cheques on Hand -
Total 2,28,642.55
Note 11: Bank Balances Others
' Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31* March
2024

| Cash and Cash Equivalent

In Deposit Accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months but 2,72,000.00
less than 12 months
Total 2,72,000.00
Note 12 : Other Financial Assets
' (Amt in Thousands)
Particulats As at 31 Match
2024
Interest Accrued and due on fixed deposits 8,644.82
Total 8,644.82
Note 13 : Current Tax Assets (Net)
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31 March,
2024
Income Tax paid for A.Y. 2024-25 ( Net) 28.477.79
GST : 1,586.53
Total 30,064.32
Note 14 : Standalone Share Capital :
' (Amt in Thousands)
Pasticulars As at 31 March,2024
Number of Amount
shares
A) Authorised Shatre Capital
?3,22&000 Equity Shares (heteafter referred to as ‘shares’) of Rs. 2,50,00,000 2,50,000.00
B) Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Capital
21,000,000 Equity Shares (hereafter referred to as ‘shates’) of Rs,
10 each fully paid up. 2,10,00,000 2,10,000.00
Total 2,10,00,000 2,10,000.00




a) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% of the Capital

Particulats As at 31 March,2024
Name of the Shareholder No. of shares held | % of Total Paid up Capital
MSEB Holding Company Limited 2,10,00,000 100%
2,10,00,000 100%
b) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of
reporting yeat/period:
Name of the Shareholder As at 31 March,2024
No. of Shares
Shates outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,00,60,000
Shares issued during the period 2,00,60,000
Shates bought back during the petiod -
Shares outstanding at the end of the pericd 2,10,00,000

c) Details of Issued, Subscribed & paid up capital during the period : 2,10,00,000 Equity shares
of Rs. 10/- each were allotted on 05/09/2023 Consideration for issue of 2,10,00,000 shares
amounting to Rs.2,10,000 Thousands was paid by MSEB Holding Company Limited.

d) Rights, Preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares: The Company has only
one class of Equity Shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share.

¢) Shares in respect of each class in the Company held by its Holding Company or its ultimate
holding Company including shares: MSEB Holding Company Limited

f) Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts or commitments for the sale of shares or
disinvestment, including the terms and amounts: Not applicable

g) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other cash and
shares bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding;

Particulats 2023-24
iy Equity Shates allotted as fully paid up Bonus Shates NIL
i{)Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash NIL

h) Terms of any securities convertible into equity shares issued along with the earliest date of
conversion in descending order starting from the farthest such date : Not Applicable

i) Calls unpaid (showing aggregate value of calls unpaid by directors and officers): Not
Applicable

j) Forfeited Shares (amount originally paid up) : Not Applicable

k) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters as on 31* March 2024 :

St. Promoter’s Name No.ofshates | % of total | % of Change

No. shares during the Year

1 MSEB Holding Company Limited { 2,10,00,000 100% 100%
(Along with the Nominees)




Note 15 : Other Equity

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31 March, 2024
(i} Retained Eatnings
Opening balance -
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the period 27,331.36
Closing balance
Total 27.331.36

Note: Retained earnings - Amount of retained earnings represents accumulated profit and losses
of the Company as on reporting date. Such profits and losses are after adjustment of payment of
dividend and transfer to any resetves as statutorily required.

Note 16 : Deferred Tax Liability/ Asset {net)

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars As at 31" March 2024
Deferred Tax Liabilities (A)
Timing difference on account of WDV of Fixed Assets ‘ 112.66
Total (A)
Deferred Tax Assets (B)
Others ‘ _ -
Total (B) -
Timing Difference(B-4) 112.66
Rate of Tax ' 25.17%
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) as at Period End -28.36
Deferred Tax Chatged/ (Credit)to Profit and Loss -28.36

During the year under review, the company has made reassessment of historical pre-tax earnings,
future probable taxable profits and came to the conclusion that deferred tax asset / liability
needs to be recognised.

Deferred Tax Movement ' (Amt in Thousands)

Particulars As at Recognized in As at
1 April 31st March
2023 P&L OCI 2024
Deferred tax liabilities _
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes - 28.36 , 28.36
- 28.36 28.36

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) - 28.36 - 28.36

Note 17 : Other Current Financial Liabilities
{Amt in Thousands)

Particulars As at 31" March 2024
a) EMD Collected _ 2,61,700.00
b) Inter Company Payables

MSEB Holding Company Ltd 41,558.05
¢) Other Payables

Statutory Dues Payable 1,440.00
d) Expenses Payable : 293.00
Total 3,04,991.05




Note 18 : Other Income

(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars For the period 31" May
2023 to 31" March 2024
Interest on Fixed Deposits with bank 9,717.55
Processing Fees 62,639.71
Tender Fees 4,296.19
Misc Income 15.48
Total 76,668.92
Note 19 : Employees Benefits Expense
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars For the period 31* May
2023 to 31° March 2024
Salaries 6,265.59
Total ' 6,265.59
Note 20 : Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
(Amt in Thousands)
Particulars For the period 31" May
2023 to 31" March 2024
Depreciation and amortisation expense 61.18
Total 61.18
Note 21: Other Expenses
{Amt in Thousands)
Particulars For the period 31* May
2023 to 31" March 2024
Administrative and General Expenses
Legal & Professional Fees , 29,576.92
Payments to Statutory Auditors , 150.00
Printing and Stationery 4.88
Fees and Subscription 2,586.82
Meeting Expenses 23.36
Bank Charges & Commission 0.02
Advertisement 193.62
Vehicle Hiring Charges 1,040.91
Office Expenses 5.05
Registration Fees 156.23
Total 33,737.80
H 5t
Payment to statutory auditors g(;)zt;l:; g;fﬁiilh 2:‘[);1
As auditor
Statutory audit fees 150.00
Tax audit fees Faans -
Qut of pocket expénses Yo L\ -
Total = Wl 15000




Note 22 : Contingent Liabilities & Capital Commitments:
(Amt in Thousands)

As on 31* March 24

Particulars

a) Claims not acknowledged as debts

(i) Sales Tax under appeals

(i) Income Tax under appeals

b} Capital Commitments

Note 23 : Leases (IND AS 116)

In the absence of applicability of Lease, lease disclosure in accordance with Ind AS-116 has not

been provided.

Note 24 : Employee Benefit (IND AS 19)

Cuttently there are two employees with the company who are above 60 years age. They are not
eligible of any employee benefit. In absence of employees benefit, disclosure in accordance with

Ind AS-19 has not been provided.

Note 25 : Segment Reporting (IND AS 108)

The company is a single-segment company with the object of holding shares in the subsidiaries
on behalf of GOM. Hence additional disclosure under Indian Accounting Standard 108 is not

required.

Note 26 : Related Party Disclosure (IND AS 24)

a) Subsidiary Companies

St | List of related parties over which control exists Relationship
No. _

1 | MSEB Holding Company Ltd. Holding Company

2 | MSKVY FIRST SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
3 | MSKVY SECOND SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
4 | MSKVY THIRD SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
5 | MSKVY FOURTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
6 | MSKVY FIFTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
7 | MSKVY SIXTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
8 | MSKVY SAPTAM SAUR $PV LTD. Subsidiary Company
9 | MSKVY EIGHTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
10 | MSKVY NINTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
11 | MSKVY TENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
12 | MSKVY ELEVENTH SOLAR SPV LTD.. Subsidiary Company
13 | MSKVY TWELFTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
14 | MSKVY THIRTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
15 | MSKVY CHATURDASH SAUR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
16 | MSKVY FIFTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
17 | MSKVY SIXTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company
18 | MSKVY SEVENTEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company




19 | MSKVY EIGHTEENTH SOLAR $PV L'TD. Subsidiary Company

20 | MSKVY NINETEENTH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company

21 | MSKVY TWENTIETH SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiary Company

22 | MSKVY TWENTY FIRST SOLAR SPV LTD. Subsidiaty Company

23 | MAHARASHTRA STATE ELECTRICITY | Wholly owned subsidiary of MSEB
DISTRIBUTION CO. LTD. Holding Co Ltd.

24 | MAHARASHTRA STATE ELECTRICITY | Wholly owned subsidiary of MSEB
TRANSMISSION CO. LTD. Holding Co Litd.

25 | MAHARASHTRA STATE POWER GENERATION CO. | Wholly owned subsidiary of MSEB
LTD. Helding Co Ltd.

The above disclosure is based on representation reccived from the Company. In view of the
exemption given in Para 25 of the Indian Accounting Standard, the company is not required to
disclose transactions with its subsidiaries since they are state-controlled enterprises.

b) Key Management Personnel:

Abha Shukla Managing Director
Balasaheb Baburao Thite Director

Chandrashekhar Anand Gadre Director (Upto 01/03/2024)
Anil Nagendra Kalekar Director (from 1/03/2024)
Subodh Rameshravji Zare Company Secretary

Rupali Bhaskar Gole Chief Financial Qfficer

No Loans or advances in the nature of loans have been granted to promotors, directors, KMP
and the related parties, either severally, or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

¢} Details of Transactions with Holding Company -
(Amt in Thousands)

For the period 31" May

Particulars 2023 to 31" March 2024
Employee Cost 6,265.59
Advertisement Expenses 193.62
Fees and Subscription 2,551.73
Meeting Expenses 23.36
Office Expenses 5.00
Printing and Stationary 3.16
Professional Fees 29,541.92
Registration Fees 156.23
Vehicle Hire Chatrges 1,040.91

39,782.00

d) Details of Transactions with Subsidiary Companies:
Incotporation expenses are incurred on behalf of subsidiary companies

Name of the Company {Amt in Thousands)

MSKVY First Solar SPV Limited 30.48
MSKVY Second Solar SPV Limited 27.58
MSKVY Third Solar SPV Limited 32.99
MSKVY Fourth Solar SPV Limited 30.18




MSKVY Fifth Solar SPV Limited 30.18
MSKVY Sixth Solar SPV Limited 32.99
MSKVY Saptam Saur SPV Limited -~ - 32.99
MSKVY Eight Solar SPV Limited ‘ 32.99
MSKVY Ninth Solar SPV Limited 31.98
MSKVY Tenth Solar SPV Limited 32.99
MSKVY Eleventh Solar SPV Limited 32.99
MSKVY Twelfth Solar SPV Limited 20.98
MSKVY Thitteenth Solar SPV Limited . 30.48
MSKVY Chaturdash Saur SPV Limited 32.99
MSKVY Fifteenth Solar SPV Limited 30.18
MSKVY Sixteenth Solar SPV Limited ' 32.99
MSKVY Seventeen Solar SPV Limited 30.48
MSKVY Eighteenth Solar SPV Limited 30.78
MSKVY Twentieth Solar SPV Limited 21.08
MSKVY Twenty First Solar SPV Limited 15.43

593.68

Note 28 : Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility:
The Provisions of Section 135 regarding CSR are not applicable to the Company for FY 2023-

24,
Note 29 : Earnings per share as per (IND AS 33)
(Amt in Thousands)

Patticulats As at 31 March 2024
Profit/(L.oss) after taxes 27,331.36
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding ' 86,16,438
Face Value of Equity Shares Rs/share 10
Earnings per share (basic) 3.17
Earnings per share (diluted) 3.17

Note 30 : Financial Instruments — Accounting, Classification and Fair Value

Measurements

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing patties, other than in a

forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value.

1) Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short-term teceivables, trade
receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, short term loans from banks and other
financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-terms
maturities of these instruments.

2) Financial instruments with fixed and variables interest rates are evaluated by the Company
based on parameters such as interest and individual credit worthiness of the counterparty.
Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of these
receivables.




The Company uses the following hierarchy for the determining and disclosing the fair value
of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) process in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: techaiques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on obsetvable market data.

All financizal assets are measured at amortised cost & FVTPL as summatised below:
(Amt in Thousands)

Particulars Carrying value |  Fair value
31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2024
Financial assets
Measured at amortized cost
Trade receivables {refer note no 9) 56.99 56.99
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10) 2,28,642.55 2,28,642.55
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(refet note 11) 2,72,000.00 2,72,000.00
Other financial assets (refer note 12 ) 8,644.82 8,644.82
Total 5,09,344.35 5,09,344.35
Financial liabilities
Measured at fair value through profit or loss - -
Borrowings
Measured at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities (refer note 17) 3,04,991.06 3,04,991.06
Total 3,04,991.06 3,04,991.06

Note 31 : Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial tisk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its
business strategies. The Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the Managing
Board.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result
from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may
change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices
and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable
to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign
currency receivables, payables and loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Intetest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as the respective reporting dates.




Foreign currency risk

The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk at the respective reporting dates.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter party may not be able to settle their obligations
as agreed. To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of
customers, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of
historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual tisk limits are set accordingly.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an on-going basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the company
compatres the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as the date of initial recognition. It consists reasonable and supportive forwarding looking
information such as:

1) Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business.

2) Actual or expected significant changes in the operating tesults of the counterparty.

3) Financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations.

4) Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty.

5) Significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of
third party guarantees or credit enhancements.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a
debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. The Company categorises a loan
or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater than 2 years
due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in
eriforcemc_ent activity to attempt the receivable due. When recoveries are made, these are
recognised in profit or loss.

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made duting the year.
Liquidity risk

Liquid risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its
obligations on time or at a reasonable price.

The Company is not exposed to liquidity risk at the respective reporting date
Note 32: Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern in ordet to provide maximum returns for shareholders

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, securities
premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

The Company monitors capital using debt to equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total
equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loan and botrowings, less cas




and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations. As on date the company does not have
any borrowings.
{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 31-Mar-2024
Borrowings -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10) 2,28,642.55
Net debt -2,28,642.55
Equity (refer note 14 & 15) 2,37,331.36
Gearing Ratio -
Note 33: Additional Regulatory Information
Ratio
Particulars Numerator Denominator | Numerator | Denominator | 2023-24
(a) (_]utrent Ratio | Total Current 'lj'ot?.l. ‘Cu.trent 539,408.67 3,04,991.05 177
(in times) Assets Liabilities
(b) 'Debt-Equlty Total Debt Shar.eholders : i 2733136 )
Ratio Equty
Interest &
(c) Debt Service Eagungs Lease Not Not Not
C Rati Available For | Payments  + Aoplicabl Aoplicable | Applicabl
overage Ratio Debt Services Principal pplicable pplicable | Applicable
Repayments
(d) Return on :;rgﬁt/%c;ss) 120: Average Equity
Equity Ratio (in p yea %% | (Shareholder's 2733136 | 1,18,665.68 0.23
Times) Preference Funds)
dividend (if any)
(e} Inventory Sales Average Not Not Not
turnover ratio Inventory Applicable Applicable | Applicable
) Trade Average
Receivables Net Credit Sales Accounts 66,935.90 - -
turnover ratio Recetvable
:)i)yables Trade Net Credit i‘cr:::lg: s Not Not Not
turnover ratio Purchases Pagables Applicable Applicable | Applicable
, Average
(h) Net capital | 10 o e Working 6693590 |  1,17,208.81 0.57
turnover ratio .
capital
() Net profit | Net Profit After |\ g1 2733136 76,668.92 0.36
ratio Tax
Capital
Employed =
(j) Return on Tangible Net
Capital EBIT Worth + Total 36,604.35 2,37,359.72 0.15
employed Debt +
Deferred Tax
Liability
(k) Return on
investment
{Measured in | Net Profit after | Avg. Total 2733136 27117539
terms of Returns | Taxes Assets
on Total Assets of
the Company)




Note 34 :

Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium The Company has not advanced or loaned or
invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: a. directly ot indirectly lend or invest in other
petsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or b. provide any guarantee, secutity or the like to or on behalf of the
ultimate beneficiaries. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall: a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other petsons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or b. provide any guatrantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate
beneficiaries for the year ended 31% March 2024.

Note 35 ;

The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, duting the
employment and post-employment, received Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The
Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministty of Labour and
Employment has teleased draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the
effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for
quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued. The Company will assess the impact of
the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statemnents in the petiod in which, the
Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

Note 36 :

Since the Company has not traded or invested in Crypto cutrency or Vittual Currency during the
financial year, no additional disclosure has been provided separately.

Note 37 :

Board Resolution no. 03/07 dated 7* March 2024 and Board Resolution no. 01/08 dt. 21%
March, 2024 were passed for sale of equity shares held in its 17 wholly owned subsidiary
companies/SPV’s for a consideration of Rs. 50 lakhs each SPV.

In anticipation of income from capital gain arising out of sale of shares in subsidiary companies,
the company paid advance tax of Rs. 3.60 Crores on 15" March 2024. However, the sale
transactions wete not executed till 31 of March 2024. Hence the advance tax paid is claimed as
refund. The actual transactions for sale of shares are executed in Financial Year 2024-25.

Note 38 : Other Statutory Information

i.  The Company has no relation with companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act 1956.

fi.  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authotity.

iii.  There has been no delay in Charges or satisfaction to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period




iv. The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

v.  The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search ot sutvey or any othet
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

vi.  The company has not revalued its property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
Assets), thus valuation by a registered valuer as defined under rule 2of the Companies
(Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017 is not applicable.

vii. The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under Clause (87)
of Section 2 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

Note 39;

Since this is the first year of the Company no previous year’s figures have been given. As the
Company was incorporated on 31* May 2023, the current year’s figures are for a period of 10
months and 1 day.

For M/8 Vinay Sanjay and
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